	Individual Action Plan Update for Malaysia for 2020

	
Highlights of recent policy developments which indicate how [economy] is progressing towards the Bogor Goals and key challenges it faces in its efforts to meet the Goals. 


	IAP Chapter (and Sub-Chapter and Section Heading, if any) 
	Improvements made since  2018 IAP 
	Further Improvements Planned 

	Tariffs
	Customs Duties Order 2017 in single Nomenclature (10 digits) implemented on 1st April 2017.

Customs Duties (Goods of ASEAN Countries Origin) (ASEAN Harmonised Tariff Nomenclature and ASEAN Trade in Goods Agreement) Order 2017 with effect from 1st April 2017.

Elimination and reduction of import duty from 2010 to 2017:

Year

Tariff Lines

2010

473
2011

2012

274

2013

8

2014

-

2015

180

2016

8

2017

107

2018

49

2019

61

Malaysia has implemented 14 Free/Preferential Trade Agreements (FTAs).These FTAs are ASEAN FTA, ASEAN-China FTA, ASEAN-Korea FTA, ASEAN-Japan CEP, ASEAN-India FTA, ASEAN-Australia-New Zealand FTA, Malaysia-Japan EPA, Malaysia-Pakistan CEPA, Malaysia-India CECA, Malaysia-New Zealand FTA, Malaysia-Australia FTA, Malaysia-Chile FTA, D8 PTA, and Malaysia-Turkey FTA and ASEAN-Hong Kong FTA.

	

	Website for further information:  
	www.customs.gov.my, tariff.customs.gov.my

	

	Contact point for further details:
	Wan Zainal Abidin bin Wan Nilam (w_zainal.nilam@customs.gov.my) 

Ahmad Tajuddin bin Yaacob (tajuddin.yaacob@customs.gov.my) 

Azlinda binti Mohd Nadzri

(azlinda.nadzri@customs.gov.my)  

Wan Zainal Abidin bin Wan Nilam (w_zainal.nilam@customs.gov.my)

Dzulham bin Ali Akbar

(dzulham.ali@customs.gov.my)  

Technical Services Division, Royal Malaysian Customs Department


	

	Non-Tariff Measures 

Non‐tariff measures include but are not restricted to quantitative import/export restrictions/prohibitions, import/export levies, minimum import prices, discretionary import/export licensing, voluntary export restraints and export

subsidies
	Currently, there is a lack of consistency in export and import licensing, permit and approval processes. Most large Multinational Corporations (MNCs) have identified the different processes and systems as a key barrier impeding productivity growth. The Malaysia Productivity Blueprint (MPB) recommends the restructuring of non-tariff measures (NTMs) to ensure streamlined processes and regulations for export and import permits and regulations.

MPC as a secretariat offered an approach to addressing NTMs by recognizing the complexity and variety of NTMs in terms of their objectives, policy measures, procedures, and economic and societal impact.

In year 2018, 6 Ministries and 23 agencies which are Ministry of Agriculture and Agro-based Industry (MOA), Ministry of Health (MOH), Ministry of Primary Industries (MPI), Ministry of Water, Land and Natural Resources (KATS), Ministry of Works (MOW) and Ministry of Human Resources (MOHR) has completed Phase 1 (identified and diagnosed NTMs) and Phase 2 (reduction of estimated 25% compliance cost).

In 2019, 8 Ministries which are Ministry of Energy, Science, Technology, Environment and Climate Change (MESTECC), Ministry of Domestic Trade and Consumer Affairs (MDTCA), Ministry of Foreign Affairs (MOFA), Ministry of International Trade and Industry (MITI), and Ministry of Tourism, Arts and Culture (MOTAC) were completed Phase 1 and 2. While Ministry of Finance (MOF), Ministry of Communications and Multimedia Malaysia (MCMM), and Ministry of Home Affairs (MOHA) had completed Phase 1 and will continue Phase 2 in 2020.

As of today, there are 65 primary legislations and 75 subsidiary legislations were reviewed for 16 Ministries and 53 agencies. Total number of NTMs findings for 16 Ministries is 421.

Implementation of Customs (Prohibitions of Imports) Order 2016 2017 and Customs (Prohibitions of Exports) Order 2016 2017 with effect from 1st March 2013  1st April 2017.

Removal of import/export licensing requirement from 2016 2017 to 2018 2019 :

Year

Tariff Lines

Import Licensing

2017

187*

2018

34

2019

-

Export Licensing

2017

19

2018

1

2019

10

Note: 

Abolishment of import license requirements for the following products:

· 181 tariff lines of iron and steel products, effective 
1 August 2017. The implementation measure is gazetted in the Customs (Prohibition of Imports) (Amendment) Order 2017;

· 34 tariff lines, effective 1st March 2018. The implementation measure is gazetted in the Customs (Prohibition of Imports) (Amendment) Order 2018:

Bil
Tariff Line 
1
2819.19.00 00

2
7211.23.90 10

3
7207.19.00 00

4
0507.90.20 00

5
0508.00.20 00

6
0511.10.00 00

7
2103.90.11 00

8
2103.90.13 00

9
2852.90.90 00

10
2923.30.20 00

11
3923.30.90 00

12
3923.90.10 00

13
3923.90.90 00

14
73.09

15
73.10

16
74.19

17
75.08

18
7611.00.00 00

19
76.12

20

78.06

21

7907.00.93 00

22

7907.00.99 00

23

8451.21.00 00

24

8451.29.00 00

25

8451.40.00 00

26

8418.10.20 00

27

8418.10.90 00

28

8418.30

29

8418.40

30

8418.50

31

8418.61

32

8418.69

33

16.04

34

16.05

Abolishment of export license requirements for the following tariff line:

· 19 tariff lines, effective 23 Oct 2017. The implementation measure is gazetted in the Customs (Prohibition of Imports) (Amendment) Order 2017: 

Bil
Tariff Line
1
2523.29.90 00
2
2103.90.11 00
3
2103.90.13 00
4
3006.91.00 00
5
3006.92.10 00
6
8418.30.10 00
7
8418.30.90 00
8
8418.40.10 00
9
8418.40.90 00
10
8418.61.00 00
11
8418.69
12
8415.10.90 00
13
73.10
14
74.19
15
75.05
16
76.12
17
78.06
18
7611.00.00 00
19
7907.00.99 00
· 1 tariff line, effective 1st March 2018. The implementation measure is gazetted in the Customs (Prohibition of Imports) (Amendment) Order 2018: 

Bil
Tariff Line
1
9114.90.00 00

· 10 tariff lines, effective 15 March 2019. The implementation measure is gazetted in the Customs (Prohibition of Imports) (Amendment) Order 2019:

Bil
Tariff Line
1
9401.52.00 00

2
9401.53.00 00

3
9401.61.00 00

4
9401.69.10 00

5
9401.69.90 00

6
9403.30.00 00

7
9403.40.00 00

8
9403.50.00 00

9
9403.60.10 00

10
9403.60.90 00


	1. Forming National Committee on NTMs (NCNTM);

2. Developments of NTM Repository;  and

3. Identifying, review,analysing, facilitate and performance Monitoring for improvement on NTM implementation and enforcement at ministries, agencies and sectoral level.

	Website for further information:  
	www.customs.gov.my ; http://mytraderepository.customs.gov.my/ 


	

	Contact point for further details: 
	Malaysia Productivity Corporation (MPC)

Mohamad Azrol Mohd. Dali

Deputy Director

Malaysia Productivity Corporation (MPC)

Tel: 03 – 7955 7266

Email: mdazrol@mpc.gov.my 
Norliza Ahmad

Manager

Malaysia Productivity Corporation (MPC)

Tel: 03 – 7955 7266

Email: norliza@mpc.gov.my   
Nasuha Misri

Assistant Manager

Malaysia Productivity Corporation (MPC)

Tel: 03 – 7955 7266

Email: nasuha@mpc.gov.my 
Technical Services Division, Royal Malaysian Customs Department
Wan Zainal Abidin bin Wan Nilam (w_zainal.nilam@customs.gov.my) 
Faridah binti Abu Bakar 

(faridah.abakar@customs.gov.my)

Diana binti Abd. Manap 

(diana.abdmanap@customs.gov.my) 


	

	Services


	Undertook a mid-term review of the Services Sector Blueprint (SSB) in 2018. The SSB which was launched in March 2015 aims to unlock the potential of the services sector and transform it into a more knowledge-intensive and innovation-led sector with strategic steps outlined to optimize the sector’s contribution to the nation’s economy. 
Advancing regulatory and governance reform by reducing unnecessary regulatory burden (RURB) for sub-sectors, namely:

1) Short Term Accommodation,

2) Transport Services, and

3) Private Healthcare.

Completed the OECD Services Trade Restrictiveness Index (STRI) exercise in 2018 which covers 22 sub-sectors, including Digital Network, Transport & Distribution Supply Chain, Market Bridging & Supporting Services and Physical Infrastructure Services.


	

	Website for further information:  
	www.miti.gov.my 
	

	Contact point for further details:
	Mr. Ravi C.K. Raman
Director, 

Services Sector Development Division, 

Ministry of International Trade and Industry (MITI)

ravi@miti.gov.my 
allssddofficer@miti.gov.my

	

	Investment


	To mitigate the challenging macroeconomic outlook ahead, Malaysia has prepared the Shared Prosperity Vision 2030 (SPV2030) with the intention of attracting new high quality investment and harness existing and future trade opportunities. Two Key Economic Growth Activities operationalise current trade facilitation efforts: first, Industrial Revolution 4.0 and second, digital economy.
To further complement this, Malaysia has launched several initiatives to encourage the transformation of the manufacturing sector include:

· National Policy on Industry 4.0 (Industry4WRD) on 31 October 2018. Aligned with Industry4WRD, SIRIM has assisted MITI in developing the methodology for the Readiness Assessment programme, which helps firms to assess their capabilities and readiness to move towards Industry 4.0; and

· National Automative Policy 2020 launched on 20 February 2020 to prepare local automotive players towards a more competitive and sustainable automotive industry. This is to facilitate Malaysia’s aims to become a regional leader in manufacturing, engineering, technology and sustainable development in the automotive sector.

	To ensure continuation from previous blueprints of Vision 2020 and the 11th Malaysia Plan, the drafting of the 12th Malaysia Plan will set a clear strategic direction and implementation framework for the period of 2021 to 2025. 

Furthermore, aligned with the 2020 Budget, the Government is currently reinvigorating the investment regime in Malaysia through a comprehensive review and revamp of the:

· Promotion of Investments Act 1986 so that they are relevant to the current economic development agenda and megatrends;  

· Industrial Coordination Act 1975 to further reduce bureaucratic procedures that delay the Manufacturing License application process; 

· New Industrial Master Plan will chart the future direction for industrial development from 2021 to 2030, including policies and strategies related to the investment agenda; and

· Policies on Malaysian Standard Development related to Standard Development Authorities.

	Website for further information:  
	
www.mida.gov.my" 
www.miti.gov.my

www.mida.gov.my
 


	

	Contact point for further details:
	alldasar@miti.gov.my 

	

	Standards and Conformance


	Standardisation

As of 31st December 2019, 5117 Malaysian Standards (MS) have been developed, and 60.1% of these standards are aligned  with international standards (ISO and IEC). 

For Malaysia’s participation in the International Organisation for Standardisation (ISO), the total number of Participating  (P) membership is 153  while the total number of Observing (O) membership is 134.

For the International Electrotechnical Commission (IEC), the total number of Participating  (P) membership is 41 while the total number of Observing (O) membership is 57.

Malaysia also assumes chairmanship / convenorship for the following working groups:

1. ISO/TC 45 Rubber and rubber products

2. ISO/TC 45/SC 4 Products (other than hoses)

3. ISO/TC 157 Non-systematic contraceptives and STI barrier prophylactics

4. ISO/TC 207/SC 7 Greenhouse gas management and related activities

5. ISO/TC 207/SC 1 Environmental management systems

6. ISO/PC 303 Guidelines on consumer warranties

7. ISO/TC 45/SC 3/WG 4 Natural rubber

8. ISO/TC 45/SC 4/WG 5 Gloves and other latex products

9. ISO/TC 61/SC 2/WG 2 Hardness and surface properties

10. ISO/TC 61/SC 9/WG 6 Polyolefins

11. ISO/TC 218/WG 4 Test methods

12. ISO/TC 241/WG 5 ISO 39002-Good practices for commuting safety systems

13. ISO/TC 45/SC 4/WG 14 Elastomeric bridge bearings

14. IEC/TC 115/WG 4 Guidelines on Asset Management of High Voltage Direct Current (HVDC) Installations  

Standards Malaysia hosts and participates in various training activities/meetings on standardization of APEC  and the Specialist Regional Bodies (SRBs) i.e Pacific Area Standards Congress (PASC).

Standards Malaysia also host ISO training  on  ISO 37001:2016 Anti-Bribery Management Systems – a tool to contribute to the UN SDGs”, 9 to 13 December 2019, Kuala Lumpur

Accreditation

The accreditation schemes offered by Standards Malaysia are:

1. Laboratory Accreditation Scheme of  Malaysia (SAMM)

2. Accreditation for Certification Bodies (ACB)

3. Malaysia Inspection Bodies Accreditation Scheme (MIBAS) 

4. GLP Compliance Programme (GLP CP)

5. Malaysia Proficiency Testing Provider Accreditation Scheme (MyPTP)

New Programme:

For the Accreditation for Certification Bodies (ACB) there is a new programme introduced in 2018, Anti Bribery Management System (ABMS).

Statistic

i. Laboratory Accreditation Scheme of  Malaysia (SAMM)

(As of December 2019)

 Fields

 

Total Number of Accredited Laboratories

Gov

Private

Public Uni/IHL

Private Uni/

IHL

Active

Testing

79

432

38

6

555

Calibration

2

84

3

0

89

Testing & Calibration

3

30

2

0

35

Medical Testing

16

40

7

0

63

Total

100

586

50

6

742

Note: 

Number of Withdrawn Laboratories Under SAMM are 203

ii. Accreditation for Certification Bodies (ACB)

No.

Programmes

Accredited

1

Quality Management Systems (QMS)

26

2

Environmental Management Systems (EMS)

17

3

Product Certification (PC) Systems including Ecolabel & MSPO Supply Chain
17

4

Occupational Safety and Health Management Systems (OSH)

11

5

HACCP Systems

6

6

Information Security Management Systems (ISMS)

2

7

Forest Management Certification (FMC)

1

8

Food Safety Management Systems (FSMS)

8

9

Certification of Persons (PERSONNEL)

5

10

Energy Management System (EnMS)

1

11

Medical Device Quality Management System (MDQMS)

4

12

Good Manufacturing Practice for Food (GMP)

4

13

Food Safety System Certification (FSSC 22000)

0

14

Malaysian Sustainable Palm Oil Certification Scheme (MSPO)

16

15

Anti Bribery Management System (ABMS)
1

iii. Malaysia Inspection Bodies Accreditation Scheme (MIBAS) 

Fields of Inspection

No. of Company

NDT Inspection

8

Welding Inspection

3

Vehicle Inspection

1

Shop Inspection

     1

Electrical Products

     1

Manufactured Products

     2

Factory Audit

1

Factories Audit

1

Building Inspection

1

Source Inspection

1

In-Service Inspection

     2

Vibration Analysis

     1

Risk Based Inspection

     1


	Malaysia has a policy of adopting international standards or direct use as a first option where appropriate. 

A review of international standards precede works on the development or revision of all national standards. 

All national standards committees have been provided with information on current policies of alignment. Practices recommended in ISO/IEC Guide 21 are adopted. Any changes are closely monitored for continuous alignment. Department of Standards Malaysia (Standards Malaysia) will continue to align national standards with international standards with the aim of making positive contributions towards the performance of the Malaysian economy.

Standards Malaysia will continue to be more active in the international standardisation activities which can contribute in Malaysian input into the international standards.

In the accreditation, Standards Malaysia plan to support industries in Malaysia and also facilitating export by:

1. Establish new accreditation scheme; 

2. Establishnew programme under ACB;

3. Maintain status of MRA/MLA signatory and OECD MAD; and

4. Add scopes and programmes under the MRA/MLA signatory and OECD MAD



	Website for further information:  
	Note: 

The number of Accredited Inspection Bodies by Standards Malaysia is 15.

There are a few organisations that have more than 1 accredited field of inspection.

iv. GLP Compliance Programme (GLP CP)

Category of Test Items

Compliant Testing Facility

Industrial Chemical

5

Feed Additives

0

Pesticides

7

Biotechnology (non-pharmaceutical products)

0

Notes:

1. Number of testing facilities compliant to OECD GLP Programme will be : 10

2. There are testing facilities compliant to more than 1 category of test items.

3. There are testing facilities compliant to more than 1 area of expertise.

v. The total number of accredited Proficiency Testing Providers: 1

Standards Malaysia host and participates in various training activities/meetings of APEC and of the Specialist Regional Body (SRB for accreditation), the Asia Pacific Accreditation Cooperation(APAC).

Standards Malaysia also represent Malaysia as the signatory for the Mutual Recognition Arrangement  (MRA) or Multilateral Recognition Agreement (MLA) for the following: 

A. Regional

APAC MRA

– attained signatory status for:

1. Quality Management System on 5 Nov 1998

2. ISO/IEC 17025 Calibration on 13 Nov 2002

3. ISO/IEC 17025 Testing on 14 Nov 2002

4. Environmental Management Systems on 31   Dec 2005

5. ISO 15189 Medical on18 Apr 2007

6. Product except Global GAP on 16 Jun 2009

7. ISO/IEC 17020 Inspection on 17 Jun 2015

8. Information Security Management System on      21 Jun 2017

9. Food Safety Management System on 21 Jun 2017

10. Occupational Health & Safety Management System on 21 Feb 2019

11. Medical Device Management System on 25 Mar 2019

B. International

ILAC MRA

– attained signatory status for:

1. Testing on 16th January 2003.

2. Calibration on 19th November 2003.

3. Inspection on 2 July 2015

IAF MLA

– attained signatory status for:

1. Quality Management System on 29 Sep 1999

2. Environmental Management System on 9 Feb 2006

3. Product except GlobalGAP on 9 Jul 2009

4. ISO/IEC 17020 Inspection on 17 Jun 2015

5. Information Security Management Systems on 13 Jul 2017

6. Management System Food Safety on 13 Jul 2017

7. Medical Device Management Systems on 21 Jun 2019

Full Adherent to OECD Mutual Acceptance of Data (MAD) since 29th March 2013.

Scientific  Metrology

In the area of metrology, Malaysia through the National Metrology Institute of Malaysia (NMIM) participates in various training activites of of the Specialist Regional Bodies (SRBs) namely the Asia Pacific Legal Metrology Forum (APLMF) and the Asia Pacific Metrology Programme (APMP).


	

	Contact point for further details:
	Strategic Planning Division, Department of Standards Malaysia:

Ms. Nor Latifah Hussin

norlatifah@jsm.gov.my 

Mr. Mohd. Hamzaini Hashim

hamzaini@jsm.gov.my 

Mr. Muhammad Aliff Ali

aliff@jsm.gov.my

	

	Customs Procedures


	Authorised Economic Operator (AEO):

AEO Program was implemented on 1 January 2010. As at December 2019, 74 companies have been granted AEO status.    

Self- Certification:

As at 31 January 2020, 493 companies have been recognised as  Certified Exporters for ATIGA. (Malaysia - 183 exporter).
	

	Website for further information:  
	www.customs.gov.my 
	

	Contact point for further details:
	Customs Division, Royal Malaysian Customs Department

Wan Saadah Binti Mohamed Muhibbuddin

(Deputy Director of Import/Export and Border Control Branch)

Email: w_saadah.muhibbuddin@customs.gov.my 

Nor Izah Binti Abd Latiff

(Deputy Director of Trade Facilitation and Industry Branch)

Email: nizah.alatiff@customs.gov.my 

Salleh Bin Samuri

(Senior Assistant Director of Customs I)

(AEO Unit)

Email: salleh.samuri@customs.gov.my 


	

	Intellectual Property Rights


	Service Delivery System

Malaysia is a member of Protocol Relating to the Madrid Agreement Concerning the International Registration of Marks and implemented the Madrid System in Malaysia on 27 December 2019. The system enables trademark owners to protect their mark in a large number of countries by obtaining an international registration via single filing. 

The Intellectual Property Corporation of Malaysia (MyIPO) introduced the IP Owner Search System for Enforcer (EyeRIS) to facilitate Enforcement Division in obtaining information on registered trademark owner and copyright owner who submitted the copyright voluntary notification to MyIPO. The system enables the Enforcement Division to obtain the information easier and faster for the purpose of conducting enforcement activities. 

The Integrated IP Management System (Phase 1) for patent and trademark is fully implemented in December 2018.

Legislation

The new Trademarks Act 2019 entered into force on 27 December 2019. The new Act introduces protection for non-traditional marks such as sound, smell and 3Dimension, collective marks and certification marks. The new Act imposed stringent penalties for offences related to trademarks.  

The new Trademarks Regulations 2019 entered into force on 27 December 2019, aims to improve trademark application and registration procedures in line with the new Trademarks Act 2019.

The Copyright (Amendment) Bill was passed by the Parliament on 19 December 2019 to expand the power of the Copyright Tribunal to hear cases relating to dispute on royalty distribution between Licensing Bodies and their members. This will provide an alternative platform for the Licensing Bodies and their members to resolve issues relating to distribution of royalties with minimum cost and expeditious manner.

Education and awareness programme

Organised IP Easy Programmes and introduced attractive filing package for SMEs. The objective of the programme is to encourage IP filing among SMEs. 

11 activities were organised under the Technology and Innovation Support Centre (TISC) Project focusing on host institutions to enhance IP knowledge and improve patent drafting skill as follows: 

•
2018: 3 programs

•
2019: 8 programs

8 activities were organised under the Enabling IP Environment Project focusing on technology transfer office to enhance knowledge on IP management, patent drafting and commercialisation as follows: 

•
2018: 2 programs

•
2019: 6 programs

The IP Academy organised 65 programmes such as seminar, workshop and training for specific target including IP agents, stakeholders and students.


	

	Website for further information:  
	http://www.myipo.gov.my 

	

	Contact point for further details:
	Yusnieza Syarmila Yusoff 

Director

Policy and International Affairs Division

Intellectual Property Corporation of Malaysia (MyIPO)

DL: +603 2299 8404

Fax: +603 2299 8989

e-mail: yusnieza@myipo.gov.my 


	

	Competition Policy


	The Competition Act 2010 came into force on 1st January 2012. Since the last IAP update, the Malaysia Competition Commission (MyCC) has undertaken various initiatives to better implement and enforce the Act. Latest improvements from Jan 2019 till December 2019 include:

1. Market Studies
The MyCC has finalised 1 market reviews i.e. on the Food Sector in Malaysia. 

2. Introduction of Guidelines
The MyCC had published its Guidelines on Intellectual Property Rights and Competition Law in 2019 and it is now available on its website.

3. Competition Advocacy Programmes

In order to raise awareness and inculcate a culture of compliance to the Competition Act 2010, MyCC continuously conducts advocacy programmes with the stakeholders.

In 2019, 32 advocacy programmes have been conducted to various sectors and government bodies. MyCC had also improved its e-Learning platform and re-launched it in August 2019, with current registered users of 106 users upto December 2019.

4. Enforcement 

In 2019:

a. The MyCC received a total of 163 complaints of which 65 have been solved or closed.

b. The MyCC based on its own initiative, a total of 2 cases have been investigated of which is still active.

c. The MyCC received 2 directions from the Minister of which investigation is still active.
	KPDNHEP and MyCC is in the process of finalizing the possible amendments to its Competition Act 2010 (Act 712) and Competition Commission Act 2010 (Act 713). Among the major inclusion is the Merger provisions.

	Website for further information:  
	https://www.mycc.gov.my/ 


	

	Contact point for further details:
	(1)
Arunan Kumaran

Deputy Director,

Policy, Strategic Planning and International Division,

Ministry of Domestic Trade and Consumer Affairs,

No.13, Level 5 (Podium 2)

Persiaran Perdana, Precinct 2,

Federal Government Administrative Center,

62623 Putrajaya.

Tel: +603 8882 6888

Fax: +603 8882 5615

Email: arunan@kpdnhep.gov.my 

(2)
Iskandar Ismail

CEO

Malaysia Competition Commission (MyCC)

Level 15, Menara SSM@Sentral,

No.7, Jalan Stesen Sentral 5, 

Kuala Lumpur Sentral

50623 Kuala Lumpur

Tel: +603 2272 1691

Fax: +603 2272 1692

Email: iskandar@mycc.gov.my  ; spiad@mycc.gov.my 


	

	Government Procurement


	Further Improvements made since 2019

i) Government Procurement Data Warehouse - MyGPIS

· MyGPIS is a centralized government procurement database system that manages detailed procurement information from annual procurement plan until completion of project through integration with other system. 
·  The development of MyGPIS is in line with Treasury Enterprise Architecture Blueprint (EA Blueprint) and Treasury Transformation Plan (TTP) initiatives to promote efficiency, accountability and transparency.
ii) Procurement Planning 

· Starting from year 2020, annual procurement plan is published through ePerolehan (eP) system and MyProcurement portal, which is accessible  by public. The information will be used to monitor procurement activities conducted and measure spending performances by Ministry.

	Enhancing MyProcurement Portal features and functions 

· MyProcurement portal acts as a platform to inform the public on the procurement information such as tender notices and award decision made by Ministry. 

· The enhanced features of MyProcurement Portal includes, among others:
a) Publication of annual procurement plan;

b) Information on quotation notice and award decision; and

c) Detailed information on award decision.

· Based on enhanced features of MyProcurement Portal, it will promote transparency and increase accountability of Ministry in conducting government procurement. 

	Website for further information:  
	http://mygpis.treasury.gov.my 


	http://myprocurement.treasury.gov.my/ 

	Contact point for further details:
	mygpishelp@treasury.gov.my; ppt_bpk@treasury.gov.my
Government Procurement Division, Ministry Of Finance


	Government Procurement Division, Ministry of FInance

	Deregulation/Regulatory Review


	MPC has undertaken various initiatives and achieved several improvements for deregulation/regulatory review from 2018 to 2019 as follows: 

Reducing Unnecessary Regulatory Burdens on Business (RURB)

· Tourism (Short-term residential accommodation)

· Transport Services 

·   Private Healthcare (Construction Permits)

· Machinery and Equipment

· Electrical and Electronics (Power Quality)

· Logistics Sector (Thematic Studies)

Dealing with Construction Permits (DCP)

· Improved ranking Doing Business Report from ranked 11 (2018) to ranked 2 (2020) by improving number of procedures (from 8 procedures to 9 procedures) and time to obtain permits (54 days to 41 days) 

· Implementation of Risk-Based Inspection (RBI) for the development of private hospitals in Malaysia 

· Expanding DCP initiatives to other states. This initiative has successfully reduced the number of procedures and days taken to get construction permits by 68 percent and 70 percent, respectively, for small-scale development. 

Cutting Red Tape (MyCURE)

Reduce or eliminate ineffective government procedures such as forms, licenses, or regulations that are outdated, overlapping, wasteful, or confusing. 

· State of Perak (5 Projects)

· State of Penang (5\6 Projects)

· State of Perlis (5 Projects)

· Ministry of Water, Land and Natural Resources (6 Projects)

· State of Johor (5 Projects)

· State of Negeri Sembilan (5 Projects)

· State of Sabah (5 Projects)

· Ministry of Agriculture (5 Projects)

· Ministry of Primary Industries (5 Projects)

· Land Public Transport Agency (1 project)

Transformation Existing Regulation Programme (PTPS) 

MPC, with the collaboration state government, has conducted activity reviewing existing regulation under the Transformation Existing Regulation Programme. This collaborative effort has managed to identify a total of 3489 legislations from 10 states. The purpose of the programme is to improve and eliminate regulations that are outdated, overlapped, ineffective, or not relevant to the current business environment & technologies.

Number of legislation review
Number of proposed to abolish

Number of proposed to simplify
Number of proposed to maintain
3,489
662
683
1,941

	Reducing Unnecessary Regulatory Burden (RURB) 

Subsequent sectors to be reviewed: 

· Pharmaceutical

· Food & Beverage

Dealing with Construction Permits (DCP) 

To institutionalize Risk-Based Inspection (RBI) into a legal framework: 

· Include risk categorization (small scale development) and types of inspection into G Form.

· The legal framework facilitates professionals to adhere to RBI

· Increase take-up rate on RBI (OSC 1Submission)

· Circular by Board of Architect Malaysia (LAM)/Board of Engineer Malaysia (BEM) to be legally mandated to assist professionals in conducting RBI

· RBI must be backed up by government control mechanism, i.e., penalty for misconduct

· Beyond World Bank Case Study:

· Building Information Modelling (BIM) system and online submission with auto-checking function

· Digital submission platform, online database, and payment

· Expansion Of OSC 1 Submission to include land matters

MyCURE 

· State of Terengganu (5 Projects)

· State of Melaka (5 Projects)

· Ministry of Health (5 Projects)

· Ministry of Transport (5 Projects)

Transformation Existing Regulation Programme (PTPS)

· Harmonising legislation between federal, state & local authority

· Performing impact assessment

· Developing State legislation repository

· Monitoring and evaluating the respective state governments to ensure the successful implementation.

· Streamlining business licensing regulations between federal, state & local authorities level by sectoral or type of business activities.



	Website for further information:  
	www.mpc.gov.my 

	

	Contact point for further details:
	Mohamad Azrol Mohd. Dali

Deputy Director

Malaysia Productivity Corporation (MPC)

Tel: 03 – 7955 7266

Email: mdazrol@mpc.gov.my 


	

	Implementation of WTO Obligations/ROOs


	Malaysia has continued to implement our commitments under the various WTO Agreements/obligations for the period of 2018-2019, including: 

· Implementation of tariff elimination commitments of the high-tecnology ICT products under the Information Technology Agreement expansion (ITA2). Effective 1 July 2019, further reduction of import tariffs which includes 50 tariff lines at 9-digit level, in HS Chapters 35; 37; 39; 49; 84; 85; 90 and 95.

· Reduction of import tariffs (from 25% to 15%) on bicycles and other cycles (including delivery tricycles), not motorized (HS 8712.00.30) effective 1 January 2019.

· Submission semi-annual reports under the Anti-Dumping Agreement (WTO ADA), and the Subsidies and Countervailing Agreement pertaining to the following:

a. WTO ADA: Cold-Rolled Stainless Steel from People’s Republic of China (PRC), Republic of Korea (ROK), Chinese Taipei and Thailand; Electrolytic Tinplate from PRC; Galvanized Iron from PRC and the Socialist Republic of Viet Nam (Viet Nam); Hot Rolled Coils from Indonesia and PRC; Cold Rolled Coils from PRC, Japan, ROk and Viet Nam; and Cellulose fibre reinforced cement sheets from Thailand and Indonesia.

· More regular notifications in fulfillment of WTO commitments to the:

a. Committee on Agriculture (6 submissions in 2018);

b. Committee on Sanitary and Phytosanitary (SPS) Measures (3 submissions in 2018);

c. Committee on Technical Barriers to Trade (TBT) (17 submissions in 2019 and 7 in 2018); and

d. Committee on Import Licensing (1 submission in 2018).

	Malaysia is also committed to fulfill the various WTO Ministerial Decisions (such as Bali and Nairobi Packages, and the recent Buenos Aires Ministerial Decision on fisheries subsidies) and work towards the conclusion of the Doha Round negotiations, including:

· Malaysia will continue to support the decision on export competition, participate in the discussions on agriculture, permanent solution on public stockholding for food security purposes, Special Safeguard Mechanism (SSM) for developing countries, services, development, environment, fisheries subsidies and Non Agricultural Market Access (NAMA).

To improve its implementation of WTO obligations, Malaysia plans to undertake more extensive outreach and awareness programme(s) to the Malaysian businesses, public and private stakeholders.

	Website for further information:  
	http://www.wto.org ; http://www.miti.gov.my

	

	Contact point for further details:
	Senior Director, 

Multilateral Trade Policy and Negotiations Division, MITI

Email: allmtpn@miti.gov.my 
Fax: +603-6206 5237


	

	Dispute Mediation


	Mediation 

· No update. Same as 2017 IAP.

Arbitration

1. On 8 May 2018, the Arbitration (Amendment) (No 2) Act 2018 (“Amendment Act”) came into force bringing Malaysian arbitration framework in line with the latest revision of the UNCITRAL Model Law and arbitration laws of leading jurisdictions.

2. The amendments represent a significant reform to Malaysian arbitration law. The amendments are as follows :-

Section 2
· Definition of “arbitral tribunal” by including “emergency arbitrator” in the definition. This guarantees that decisions by emergency arbitrators are recognised.

New Section 3A

· Freedom of parties to choose representation
Both domestic and international parties now have the freedom to choose any representatives to represent them in the arbitration proceedings.

Section 4

· The arbitrability of Subject-matter to further exclude ‘subject matter of a dispute which is not capable of settlement by Arbitration under the law of Malaysia
Section 9

· Definition of “arbitration agreement” in the Act. 

This amendment removes the positive and evidentiary writing requirement and seeks to address advances in communication technology. An agreement to arbitrate may be entered into in any form (including orally) as long as the contents of the agreement are recorded i.e. email, fax, etc. There is no longer any requirement for the signature of parties or an exchange of message between the parties.

Section 11

· High Court granted jurisdiction to grant interim measures

· Section 11(1) has been amended to provide jurisdiction to the High Court to grant interim measures to maintain or restore the status quo of the parties pending the determination of the dispute by the arbitral tribunal, make an order for preservation of evidence and to order security for costs.

Section 19

· Comprehensive, yet balanced provisions dealing with arbitral tribunal’s powers to grant interim measures by further redefining interim measure that can be granted to party/parties.

New Sections 19A-19J

· Interim measures by Arbitral Tribunal

New section

Explanatory note

19A

sets out the conditions for granting interim measures 

19B

permits applications for preliminary orders and sets out the conditions for granting preliminary orders 

19C

creates a specific regime and mechanism governing the granting of preliminary orders 

19D

allows the arbitral tribunal to modify, suspend or terminate an interim measure that it has granted 

19E

permits the arbitral tribunal to require security from the party requesting an interim measure

19F

requires a party to promptly disclose any material change in the circumstances on the basis of which the interim measure was requested or granted

19G

provides that the requesting party shall be liable for any costs and damages caused by the interim measure if the arbitral tribunal later determines that the interim measure should not have been granted

19H

provides for the recognition and enforcement of an interim measures issued by an arbitral tribunal

19I

sets out the grounds for refusing recognition or enforcement of an interim measure

19J

provides that the High Court has the power to issue interim measures in relation to arbitration proceedings, irrespective of whether the seat of arbitration is in Malaysia

Section 30

· Reinstatement of parties’ right to choose any law or rules of law applicable to the substance of a dispute and arbitral tribunal’s right to decide according to equity and con science, if so authorized by the parties.

Section 33

· Express provisions empowering arbitral tribunal to grant pre- and post-award interest on any sums that are in disputes

New Section 41A & 41B

· Express provisions ensuring confidentiality of arbitration and arbitration-related court proceedings. Further redefining of the exclusion to the prohibition on disclosure of information relating to arbitration proceedings and awards. For arbitration related court proceedings, all shall be heard in chambers unless otherwise ordered. The court may make an order to have the proceedings heard in open court upon the application by a party, or on its own motion if satisfied that the proceedings ought to be heard in open court.

Repeal of Sections 42 and 43 

· Reinforcement of principles of minimum court intervention and finality of arbitral awards. Parties can no longer challenge the arbitral award to Court on grounds of questions of law.


	At present, no further improvement has been planned as the current provisions are sufficient in facilitating resolution or settlement of disputes in a fair, speedy and cost-effective manner.

	Website for further information:  
	www.malaysianbar.org.my;                                                      www.kehakiman.gov.my;

 www.klrca.org.my 


	

	Contact point for further details:
	Ms. Haliza Aini Dato’ Othman

Head of International Affairs Division 

Attorney General’s Chambers,

No. 45, Persiaran Perdana, Presint 4, 62100 Putrajaya.

MALAYSIA.

Tel No: +603-8872 2256

Email: haliza@agc.gov.my

	

	Mobility of Business People


	The autogates for Malaysian (Malaysian e-gate) which are equipped with facial recognition technology were installed in KLIA in 2019. This autogate is believed to provide better and faster identification capabilities as compared to the fingerprint technology which is used previously.  The number of facial recognition autogates are 20 units (10 departure, 10 arrival). 

The installation will be further installed in other airports and expanded for foreigners
	Malaysia is working on the transformation of immigration system called the National immigration Integrated System (NIISe) which is expected to be fully commissioned by the year 2023. Through NIISe, Malaysia will develop an in-house ABTC application system for home applicants and integrate the system with the ABTC Online Lodgement.

This initiative will help to ease the data entry job by immigration officers which is currently being done manually.

Malaysia is also exploring possibilities of easing the movement of ABTC holders by facilitating movement through the usage of autogates equipped with facial recognition capabilities at the airports. This initiative is expected to be rolled out in 2023.

	Website for further information:  
	www.imi.gov.my 


	

	Contact point for further details:
	Immigration Affairs Division, Ministry of Home Affairs:

Noor Azreen binti Kamalzman 

(+603-8886 3307, noor.azreen@moha.gov.my )

Ms. Veronica Tan Kah Min

(+603-8886 3257, veronica@moha.gov.my)

	

	Official websites that gather economies’ information


	Generally, the Ministry of International Trade and Industry’s website has sufficienct information with links provided to the other Ministries should further information be required.

The Malaysian Government also applies the “No Wrong Door Policy” as such any query will be answered by respective Ministry and query beyond its jurisdiction, it will than be forwarded to the relevant Ministry and Agency.

Alternatively, all information related to the Malaysian Government and machinery is also available at the www.malaysia.gov.my. This website provides a single point access and gateway to multiple Government online services as well as information on the Government’s machinery.


	

	Website for further information:  
	www.miti.gov.my , www.malaysia.gov.my , www.treasury.gov.my, www.bnm.gov.my 


	

	Contact point for further details:
	apecmiti@miti.gov.my 


	

	Transparency


	Unified Public Consultation (UPC) 

MPC has developed the online Unified Public Consultation (UPC) portal which served as a centralized government portal for consultation to support the National GRP Policy. As of 3rd February 2020, the portal has received 55 consultation documents from 33 Ministries and Agencies, 6537 registered users and 109681 visitors. 

Reviewing Policy Statement on GRP System

MPC has reviewed the National Policy on Development and Implementation of Regulations (NPDIR), a key policy document governing regulatory reform in Malaysia. MPC has conducted a thorough analysis, benchmarking and consultation process to obtain recommendations for improving the current policy


	Unified Public Consultation (UPC) 

MPC is pursuing to enhance functionalities and awareness campaign to obtain more registered users and consultation documents by integrating login system with social media, creating homepage slider and setting up survey question.

Reviewing Policy Statement on GRP System

MPC will launch the National Policy on Good Regulatory Practices, the newer version of NDPIR. It emphasises the principles of transparency, accessibility and effective stakeholders consultation for the regulators to embed in the rule-making process. 

	Website for further information:  
	http://upc.mpc.gov.my/

	

	Contact point for further details:
	Mohammed Alamin Rehan

Deputy Director

Malaysia Productivity Corporation (MPC)

Tel: 03 – 7955 7266

Email: alamin@mpc.gov.my 
	


	RTAs/FTAs 
                    

	- Description of current 

  agreements


	· Since the last Individual Action Plan (IAP) review in 2018, Malaysia has been implementing one (1) new FTA, i.e. ASEAN – Hong Kong, China Free Trade Agreement (AHKFTA), bringing the total number of Malaysia’s implemented FTAs to fourteen (14). 

· Bilateral FTAs:

NO.

FREE TRADE AGREEMENTS

ENTRY INTO FORCE

1.

Malaysia-Japan Economic Partnership Agreement (MJEPA)

13 July 2006

2.

Malaysia-Pakistan Closer Economic Partnership Agreement (MPCEPA)

1 January 2008

3.

Malaysia-New Zealand Free Trade Agreement (MNZFTA)

1 August 2010

4.

Malaysia-India Comprehensive Economic Cooperation Agreement (MICECA)

1 July 2011

5.

Malaysia-Chile Free Trade Agreement (MCFTA)

25 February 2012

6.

Malaysia-Australia Free Trade Agreement (MAFTA)

1 January 2013

7.

Malaysia-Turkey Free Trade Agreement (MTFTA)

1 August 2015

· Regional FTAs:

NO.

FREE TRADE AGREEMENTS

ENTRY INTO FORCE

1.

ASEAN-Korea Free Trade Agreement (AKFTA)

1 July 2006

2.

ASEAN-Japan Comprehensive Economic Partnership (AJCEP)

1 February 2009

3.

ASEAN-China Free Trade Agreement (ACFTA)

1 January 2010

4.

ASEAN-Australia and New Zealand Free Trade Agreement (AANZFTA)

1 January 2010

5.

ASEAN-India Free Trade Agreement (AIFTA)

1 January 2010

6.

ASEAN Trade In Goods Agreement (ATIGA)

17 May 2010

7.

ASEAN-Hong Kong, China Free Trade Agreement (AHKFTA)

1 October 2019

· Malaysia has also signed the Comprehensive and Progressive Agreement for Trans-Pacific Partnership (CPTPP) on March 2018 together with Australia, Brunei, Canada, Chile, Japan, Mexico, New Zealand, Peru, Singapore, and Vietnam. However, since Malaysia has yet to ratify the Agreement, it will not be able to enjoy the preferential treatment under the pact.

	- Agreements under negotiation


	·  Malaysia is actively negotiating two (2) Free Trade Agreements (FTAs), namely:

	
	Agreement #1


	Regional Comprehensive Economic Partnership (RCEP)

· The RCEP initiative was launched in November 2012 at the 21st ASEAN Summit in Cambodia and the negotiations formally started in 2013. The negotiations involve 16 countries, consisting 10 ASEAN Member States (AMS) and ASEAN’s Free Trade Area (FTA) Partners (AFPs) namely Australia, China, India, Japan, Korea as well as New Zealand in which ASEAN already has existing bilateral FTAs with each of these Partners.
· The scope of the RCEP negotiating areas is comprehensive and include trade in goods (including the related chapters of rules or origin, customs procedures, sanitary and phytosanitary measures, standards, technical regulations and conformity assessment procedures and trade remedies) services, investment, competition policy, intellectual property rights, electronic commerce, government procurement, economic and technical cooperation, SMEs and legal and institutional issues.

· A Joint Leader’Statement was issued on 4 November 2019 announcing the conclusion of the text-based negotiations among RCEP Participating Countries for all 20 chapters as well as market access issues and tasked legal scrubbing to commence for signing in 2020.


	
	Agreement #2


	Malaysia-European Free Trade Area Economic Partnership Agreement (MEEPA)

· The MEEPA initiative is between Malaysia and the European Free Trade Association (EFTA) member states, consisting of Iceland, Liechtenstein, Norway and Switzerland. 

· Official negotiations commenced in 2014 and the scope of negotiations includes trade in goods, customs procedures and trade facilitation, rules of origin, trade remedies, sanitary and phyto-sanitary measures, technical barriers to trade, services, investment, competition, intellectual property rights, government procurement, trade and sustainable development (i.e. labour and environment), cooperation and capacity building and dispute settlement.


	- Future plans


	· Taking into account the latest development and challenges in global trade, Malaysia is taking a cautious and careful approach to ensure that FTAs involving Malaysia not only be free but also fair and mutually beneficial. 

· Thus, Malaysia’s involvement in any FTAs should bring the fullest benefits to its people while at the same preserving policy space for the Government.  

 

	Website for further information:  
	https://fta.miti.gov.my/index.php/pages/view/4?mid=23 



	Contact point for further details:
	Strategic Negotiations Division 

Ministry of International Trade and Industry Malaysia (MITI)

(allfta@miti.gov.my)
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